To become a beverage industry leader in Jamaica, the Caribbean and Diaspora Markets.

We are committed to manufacture and distribute beverages of the highest quality to
meet the needs of our customers in all the markets we serve, to optimise the returns to
our shareholders, and to improve the quality of life of employees and the well-being of
the communities we serve in Jamaica and elsewhere.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE is hereby given that the Fifty Third Annual General Meeting of Salada Foods Jamaica Limited will be
held on February 21, 2018 at 1:00 p.m. at 20 Bell Road, Kingston 11 for the following purposes:
1. Audited Accounts
To consider and if thought fit to pass the following ordinary resolution:
“THAT the audited accounts for the year ended 30th of September, 2017 and the report of the directors and
auditors thereon BE AND IS HEREBY received and adopted.”
2. To Ratify Dividend
To consider and if thought fit pass the following ordinary resolution:
“THAT the dividend of $0.50 per stock unit paid on December 18, 2017 to all Stockholders on record at the
close of business on December 1, 2017, BE AND IS HEREBY ratified.”
3. Retirement and Election of Directors
Article 72 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation provides that at every Annual General Meeting one-third of
the directors subject to retirement for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the number nearest to one third, shall retire from office. The Directors retiring under this Article are Mr. Eric
Stultz, Mr. Aubyn Hill and Mr. Michael Bernard, who all being eligible, offer themselves up for re-election.
To consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution:
(a) “THAT retiring Director Mr. Eric Stultz be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.”
(b) “THAT retiring Director Mr. Aubyn Hill be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.”
(c) “THAT retiring Director Mr. Michael Bernard be and is hereby re-elected a Director of the Company.”
4. Directors’ Remuneration
“THAT the total combined remuneration of all Directors shall be determined by the Board.”
5. Appointment of Auditors
To consider and if thought fit pass the following resolution:
“THAT KPMG having signified their willingness to continue in office as Auditors of the Company shall be the
Company’s Auditors until the conclusion of the Next Annual General Meeting, at a remuneration to be agreed
by the Directors.”
NOTES
I. A member eligible to attend and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint another person as his/
her proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. A proxy, so appointed, need not be a member of the Company.
II. All members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.
III. Enclosed is a form of proxy which must be deposited with the Secretary, at the Registered office of the
Company not less than forty-eight hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.
DATED THE 1st DAY OF DECEMBER 2017
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Michelle Smith
COMPANY SECRETARY
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F

iscal year 2017 was by all accounts a relatively
good one for Salada as we achieved several key
strategic and operational milestones.

We had another record-breaking year as our
revenue broke new grounds, climbing to $871.73M,
14.4% or $110M more that the previous year’s $761.73M.
Domestic sales was the main driver, consequent on
our marketing strategies and the diligence and
distribution strength of our local distribution
partner, Lasco. Sales into trade was $579.69M,
24% better than prior year. Export sales did
not meet expectations, but we know what
the problem is - the underperformance
of our efforts in the New York Tri-State
region of the United States - and we are
committed to fixing it.
Net Profit was $68.68M, compared to
$68.90M prior year. Net profit was
negatively impacted by write-downs
totalling $55.19M attributable to
Pimora Company Limited ($10.56M),
pension wind-up ($34.9M), asset held
for sale ($4.03M) and obsolete stock
($5.7M).
During the year, we undertook
a critical business review of the
company and re-aligned our strategic
course to ensure strong financial
performance and continuity as well as
to deliver long-term shareholder value.
Accordingly, your company as at December,
2017 distributed a total of $51.94M in
dividends, 50 cents per stock unit up from
44 cents last year representing a dividend
growth rate of 13.64% year-on-year and
dividend yield in excess of 5%.
Strategically, Mountain Peak Food
Processors Limited (MPFP) which
transitioned to being the local sales and
marketing arm of the Salada Group, recorded
a profit for the first time since inception.
Additionally, in May 2017, we acquired the

remaining 0.20 % shareholding from the minority
shareholders, making Mountain Peak Food
Processors Limited a fully owned subsidiary.

entire surplus of $41.70M went to the members of the Fund who
were encouraged to open individual retirement accounts with
approved financial institutions.

As we position for growth in exports, we
embarked upon international certification
in Safe Quality Foods (SQF). This type of
certification assures consumers locally and
internationally that we manufacture products
utilizing systems that are robust on quality and
food safety. SQF guarantees that our products
can enter the major retail chains in Europe,
United States and Canada. I am proud to report
that Salada is now SQF LEVEL 2 certified and
congratulate the Management Team in attaining
this important milestone. We were also audited
by the US Food and Drug Administration (FDA)
and are now FDA compliant.

Pimora Company subsidiary remained a challenge, as the
Pimora product has not gained mass appeal. We took the
decision to wind-down the operations in order to stem losses
and to dispose of our shareholding.

The engagement of millennials has begun with
the introduction of the Jamaica Mountain Peak
flavoured coffees, our foray on social media
platforms and our on-the-ground marketing
activations on our university campuses have
been successful.
Operationally, we spent $18M improving the
factory, by refurbishing the floors, improving
the canteen facility, the security and food
safety features within the plant. We also
invested USD$85,000 in new equipment, a
smaller spray-dryer to actively pursue more
contract manufacturing opportunities and a
new bottle labeler.

I would like to express gratitude to the men and women who
come out to work every day, for their enthusiasm, dedication
and pride in making sure that the products Salada produces
and sell are of the highest standard. I thank my fellow Directors,
Kathryn, Michael, Eric and Aubyn, for their commitment and
for enthusiastically taking on board and committee work
conducted outside of formal meetings, and the Management
Team and Staff, for your continued support in shaping the
future of the company.

Patrick Williams
CHAIRMAN

Our submission to wind-up the Pension
Fund was approved by the Financial Services
Commission (FSC) effective August 31, 2017. The
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DIRECTORS’
T

REPORT

he Directors take pleasure in submitting their report for the year ended September 30, 2017. The
table below represents the financial results for the year.

2017

2016

2015

Profit before taxation

87,510

85,971

23,127

Other comprehensive profit for the year

19,918

12,965

6,628

Taxation

(18,824)

(17,071)

8,525

Net Profit

88,604

81,865

38,280

Accumulated surplus at beginning of year

779,261

738,948

742,220

Dividend

(45,709)

(41,552)

(41,552)

Acquisition of non-controlling interest

(18,000)

-

-

Accumulated surplus at end of year

804,156

779,261

738,948

0.72

0.40

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Earnings per ordinary stock unit

0.67

Details of the results for the year were approved by the Board on November 16, 2017 and a comparison with
the previous year is set out in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income on page (42).
DIVIDENDS
The Directors did not recommend a final dividend be paid to Shareholders in respect of the financial year
end September 2017.
In the first quarter of the financial year the Directors declared dividend of $0.50 per stock unit to be paid on
December 18, 2017 to all Shareholders on record as at the close of business on December 1, 2017.
DIRECTORS
There were no changes to the composition of the Board and Committees within the year.
Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation one-third of the Directors subject to
retirement shall retire and may be re-elected to office at every Annual General Meeting. The Directors
retiring under this article are Mr. Eric Stultz, Mr. Aubyn Hill and Mr. Michael Bernard, all being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.
OFFICERS
Mr. Andrew Kerr, Financial Controller, resigned effective September 29, 2017 and Mrs. Elaine Tomlinson was
appointed Financial Controller effective October 2, 2017. Mrs. Tomlinson is no longer with the Company
effective December 1, 2017. The Board internally considered Mr. Zayous Hamilton and appointed him Acting
Financial Controller effective December 1, 2017.
The Board wishes to thank Management and Staff for their dedication to the Company and achievements
during the year.
Dated the 1st of December 2017
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Michelle Smith
SECRETARY
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AUBYN HILL
Mr. Aubyn Hill has served as a Director of
Salada since February 8, 2012 and is Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee.
Mr. Hill is the Chief Executive Officer of
Corporate Strategies Limited which he
started in 2005, he also serves as Chairman
of the Board of Nation Growth Micro Finance
Limited, Innovative Renewable Energy &
Electronics Limited and the National Water
and National Irrigation Commissions.
Mr. Hill is vested in nation building and
was appointed Executive Director of the
country’s Economic Growth Council, he is
also the Special Investment Ambassador
and Envoy to India and Chief Technical
Advisor in the Ministry of Finance. He is
a representative of the Upper House of
Parliament as a Senator and also serves as
the Deputy President of the Senate.
A former Group Managing Director for the
National Commercial Bank Jamaica Limited.
He also serves as a Director on the boards
of other public and private companies in
Jamaica including Jamaica Broilers Group
Limited. Mr. Hill also serves on the Counsel of
the UWI and is Chair of their Audit Committee.
He is a graduate of Munro College and
Harvard University, where he earned a
Master in Business Administration.

PATRICK WILLIAMS
(Chairman)

MICHAEL BERNARD

Mr. Patrick Williams was appointed Chairman
of Salada on March 5, 2015 and has served as
a Director since February 8, 2012. He is also
a Board member of Salada’s subsidiaries Mountain Peak Food Processors and Pimora
Limited. Mr. Williams is a member of the Audit
Committee and the Procurement Committee.

Mr. Michael Bernard has served as a Director
of Salada since November 15, 2002. He is a
Board member of Salada’s subsidiaries – Coffee
Company Limited, Shirriff’s (Jamaica) Limited
Mountain Peak Food Processors Limited, and
Pimora Company Limited. He is a member of the
Audit Committee.

Mr. Williams is a senior executive of the ICWI
Group Limited, a leading general insurer
in the English-speaking Caribbean, with its
corporate office in Kingston, Jamaica and
offices in Cayman, Bahamas, Turks and Caicos,
British Virgin Islands, St. Kitts and Nevis, St.
Maarten and Trinidad and Tobago. At ICWI
he has held many positions - CEO, Caribbean
Investment Fund; Managing Director, ICWI
Bahamas Limited; Vice President, Investments.
Currently, he is Vice President, Strategic
Planning and Information Technology.

Mr. Bernard is the Executive Chairman of Peak
Bottling Company Limited. He is a former
General Manager of Jamaica Biscuit Company
and former Managing Director of both the
Cigarette Company of Jamaica Limited and
the Agricultural Products of Jamaica Limited.
Mr. Bernard serves as a Director on many
other boards including Carreras Limited and
Hardware & Lumber. He is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of his alma mater
Jamaica College and Supreme Ventures Racing
and Entertainment Limited.

He is a member of the Board of Ideal Portfolio
Services Limited, Ideal Finance Corporation,
Hardware &Lumber Limited and the University
Hospital of the West Indies Private Wing
Limited (Tony Thwaites Wing).

He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Business Administration and Bachelor of
Science degree in Forestry Management from
Washington State University and a Master
in Business Administration from Harvard
University.

Mr. Williams is a graduate of the Bernard M.
Baruch College of the City University of New
York with a Master in Business Administration
in Finance and holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Anthropology and Zoology from the
University of Toronto.

KATHRYN LEWIS
Ms. Kathryn Lewis has served as a Director of Salada
since February 8, 2012. She is a Board member
of Salada’s subsidiaries - Mountain Peak Food
Processors Limited and Pimora Company Limited.
She is the Chairperson for the Corporate Governance
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.
Ms. Lewis is a founding Partner of Lewis, Smith,
Williams & Company, Attorneys-at-Law and
Trademark Agents. She holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Political Science from McMaster University,
a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University
of Liverpool, a Legal Education Certificate from
the Norman Manley Law School and a Master in
Business Administration from University of the West
Indies, Mona School of Business. She was admitted
to the Jamaican Bar in 2011.
Ms. Lewis serves as a Director on the Board of Ideal
Group of Companies. She also serves on the Boards
of Companies Office of Jamaica and the Trade Board
Jamaica Limited.

MICHELLE SMITH
(Company Secretary)
Ms. Michelle Smith was appointed Company
Secretary of Salada and its subsidiaries - Coffee
Company Limited, Shirriff’s (Jamaica) Limited,
Mountain Peak Food Processos Limited and
Pimora Company Limited effective April 30, 2015.
Ms. Smith is currently the Managing Partner of
Lewis, Smith, Williams & Company, Attorneys-atLaw and Trademark Agents. She heads the firm’s
Commercial Division and Dispute Resolution
Department.
She is a graduate of the University of the
West Indies with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
History and a Bachelor of Laws degree. She
also holds a Legal Education Certificate from
the Norman Manley Law School and a Master
of Laws in International and Commercial
Dispute Resolution Law from the University of
Westminster.

ERIC STULTZ
Mr. Eric Stultz has served as a Director
of Salada since January 22, 2008. He is a
Board member of Salada’s subsidiaries
– Coffee Company Limited, Shirriff’s
(Jamaica) Limited, Mountain Peak Food
Processors and Pimora Company Limited.
He is the Chairman of the Procurement
Committee and member of the Corporate
Governance Committee.
Mr. Stultz is currently the General Manager
of Baking Enterprises Limited and has
worked for the National Continental
Corporation since 1980 in various senior
capacities. He is a graduate of St. Georges
College.

Ms. Smith has over ten years experience
practicing as an attorney-at-law. She was
admitted to the Jamaican Bar in 2005 and was
also called to the bars of Anguilla in 2006 and St.
Kitts and Nevis in 2007.

Annual Report | 2016-17
Salada Foods Jamaica Limited

17

CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors of SALADA FOODS
JAMAICA LIMITED believes that good
corporate governance contributes to
sustainable
economic
development
by enhancing the performance of
the
Company
and
increasing
its
competitiveness in a changing global
environment. In essence, Salada believes
that good corporate governance consists
of a system of structuring, operating and
controlling a company so as to achieve the
following:
- a culture based on a foundation
of sound business ethics;

Integrity and ethical behavior is a fundamental requirement of
Salada in choosing Board members. We have developed a code
of conduct for our directors that promote ethical and responsible
decision making.
Disclosure and transparency is a key element of Salada’s corporate
governance practices to clarify and make publicly known the
roles and responsibilities of Board and management to provide
stakeholders with a level of accountability. We have implemented
procedures to independently verify and safeguard the integrity of
the Company’s financial reporting. Disclosure of material matters
concerning the organisation is timely and balanced to ensure that
all stakeholders/ investors have access to clear, factual information.

- take account of the needs of the
environment and the local community;

The Board and Management this year took a closer look at whether
improvements can be made to Salada’s internal practices, policies
and procedures to ensure it conforms to best practices for good
corporate governance. One area the Board decided it must address
and implement is an annual Board evaluation so as to effectively
assess its performance both collectively and individually because
accountability for its performance is important for strong and
effective governance. As such a Board evaluation policy is being
designed for the Company, which the Board is looking forward
to finalizing and implementing for the next financial year. The
Corporate Governance Charter is also due for revision in the 2nd
quarter of the next financial year which the Corporate Governance
Committee will consider and make recommendations, if any, to the
Board for changes.

- maintaining proper compliance with
all the applicable legal and regulatory
requirements under which the Company
carry on it business.

The Board recognizes that compliance with polices and procedures
is not sufficient but developing a sincere attitude and behaviour
towards practicing and fostering a culture of good corporate
governance is key. The Board is dedicated to that process.

- fulfilling the long-term strategic
goals of the Company while taking into
account the expectations of all the key
stakeholders and in particular, consider
and care for the interests of employees,
past, present and future;
- work to maintain excellent relations
with both customers and suppliers;

It is our belief that a well managed
organization must be structured in such
a way that all the above requirements
are catered for and can be seen to be
operating effectively by all the interest
groups concerned; such as the equitable
treatment of shareholders by respecting
their rights and helping them to exercise
those rights by openly and effectively
communicating information and by
encouraging shareholders to participate
in general meetings.
The interests of other stakeholders are
also recognised as we have a legal,
contractual, social, and market driven
obligation to non-shareholding stakeholders,
including employees, investors, creditors,
suppliers, local communities, customers,
and policy makers.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Company’s Board of Directors consists of five members, namely
Mr. Patrick Williams (Chairman), Mr. Aubyn Hill, Ms. Kathryn Lewis,
Mr. Michael Bernard and Mr. Eric Stultz. Of the five members, there is
one non-independent and four independent. A Director meets the
independent criteria when he or she:- does not represent a substantial shareholding;
- is not a close relative of a significant shareholder;
- does not have an employment relationship with the Company
or its subsidiaries.
The Company’s Corporate Secretary is Ms. Michelle N. Smith.
The appointment and removal of the Corporate Secretary is
subject to the Board’s approval. The Corporate Secretary must be
sufficiently qualified and able to perform the duties of the position,

including but not limited to preparing agenda and minutes of Board and Committee
meetings, circulating timetable for meetings, communicating with shareholders,
advising on meeting regulatory deadlines and requirements and overall ensuring
good governance is practiced by the Company.
The Board’s composition continues to have sufficient and relevant expertise to review
and challenge management’s performance as shown in the table below.

Expertise

Patrick Williams
(Chairman)

Michael Bernard

Aubyn Hill

Kathryn Lewis

Eric Stultz

I

I

I

NI

I

General
Management
Strategic
Management
Finance &
Accounting
Sales &
Marketing
Legal
Manufacturing
Risk
Management
Independent
(I) / Nonindependent (NI)

The Board has three established Committees as follows:
i. The Audit Committee
ii. The Corporate Governance Committee; and
iii. The Procurement Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The role of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board by giving oversight to the
financial reporting and the auditing process of the Company’s financials including
the following:- To review the unaudited quarterly financials and audited financials.
- To monitor and ensure that the integrity of the financials are maintained.
- To ensure that proper accounting standards are complied with in the preparation
of the financials.
- Ensure internal controls and systems are in place to identify and contain
business risks.
The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Aubyn Hill-Chairman, Miss Kathryn
Lewis, Mr. Michael Bernard and Mr. Patrick Williams. Two members form a quorum.
Meetings are held quarterly and where it is deemed necessary to do so.
The following matters were considered by
the Committee during the year:
- Review and recommend to the Board the approval of quarterly unaudited
financial statements and releases to shareholders
- Review the audited financials for year
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and cost-effective procurement of goods and
services within Salada and its subsidiaries

ended September 30, 2016 prepared
by the external auditors, KPMG, and
their management letter

- Hold management accountable for the prudent
use of Salada’s resources in compliance with
policies, procedures and applicable legislation

- Assess the effectiveness of the
external auditors, KPMG, with a view
to recommending for approval
the scope of work to be done by it
and the fees to be paid for
services rendered

Two members form a quorum. Meetings are held on a quarterly
basis and where it is deemed necessary to do so.
During the year the matters considered by the Committee were
as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The role of the Corporate Governance
Committee is to:

- Review and approve expenditure associated with
renovations to the plant required for Safe Quality
Foods (SQF) certification

- Carry out periodic review of
the principles of Corporate
Governance

- Review and approval of other periodic expenditure
as required under the procurement policy

- Make timely disclosure to its
Stockholders/ Stakeholders
and other regulatory bodies
- Ensure a formal and transparent
compensation/ remuneration
policy for Executives, Directors
and Senior Management
- Monitor as appropriate,
directors’ orientation
to update the skills and
knowledge required to
fulfill their roles both on the
Board and Committees

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS ATTENDANCE
There were ten Board of Directors meetings, four Audit Committee
meetings, two Corporate Governance Committee meetings and
three Procurement Committee meetings held during the year.

Committees

Patrick
Williams

Eric Stultz

Kathryn
Lewis

BI*

Audit
Corporate Governance

Michael
Bernard

Chair

BI
Chair

Procurement

Aubyn Hill

BI

Chair

BI

BI

BI

- Review strategies,
performances and to
resolve disputes speedily
Two members form a quorum. Meetings are held
quarterly.
During the year the matters considered by the
Committee were as follows:
- Review possible options for a
Board evaluation process and
make recommendations to the
Board for consideration
- Review of the Homework
Literacy Centre and make
recommendations

PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

The Procurement Committee’s
role is to:

- Ensure that the principles of honesty,
fairness and integrity drive efficient

The Board of Directors attendance at respective Board and
Committee meetings is reflected in the table below. A Director who
is not a member of a Committee but attended that Committee’s
meeting by invitation, record of attendance is included in the table.

Directors

Board
Meetings

Audit
Committee
Meeting

Corporate
Governance
Meeting

Procurement
Committee
Meeting

Patrick Williams

10/10

4/4

2/2

3/3

Michael Bernard

9/10

4/4

1/2

2/3

Kathryn Lewis

10/10

3/4

2/2

1/3

Aubryn Hill

7/10

0/4

0/2

0/3

Eric Stultz

9/10

2/4

2/2

3/3

This year Mr. Patrick Williams acted as Chairman of the Audit
Committee in place of Mr. Aubyn Hill.

(Centre)

DIANNA BLAKE-BENNETT
(General Manager)
Mrs. Blake-Bennett joined Salada in February 2016 as the Commercial and Corporate Affairs
Manager and was promoted to General Manager in January 2017. Mrs. Blake-Bennett has over 15
years experience in Sales and Marketing, leading in this area in a number of companies including
Restaurant Associates Limited and the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League. Prior to joining
Salada, she was the Sales and Marketing Manager at Industrial Chemical Company.
Mrs. Blake-Bennett holds a Postgraduate Diploma and an Executive Master in Business Administration
from the University of the West Indies, Mona School of Business and Management.

(Left)

LORNA LEWIS
(Group Operations Manager)
Mrs. Lorna Lewis joined Salada in February 1996 as Quality Assurance Manager. She is now responsible
for leading the manufacturing operations and oversees the security portfolio. Prior to joining Salada
she worked for the Seprod Group of Companies.
Mrs. Lewis holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of the West Indies in Chemistry
and Zoology and a Master in Business Administration from Nova South-Eastern University.

(Right)

TAMII BROWN
(Commercial & Corporate Affairs Manager)
Mrs. Tamii Brown joined Salada in April 2017. She is responsible for the marketing and positioning of
the company’s brands in local and international markets as well as overseeing Salada’s corporate
social responsibility initiatives.
Prior to joining Salada, she worked with Stansfeld Scott as both Division and Caribbean Area
Manager based in Barbados.
Mrs. Brown holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from York University, Toronto, Canada in Communication
Studies and Spanish (cum laude) and a Master of Business Administration, Marketing (Distinction)
from the Mona School of Business.

(Left)

DAVE LEMARD
(Engineering & Services Manager)
Mr. Dave Lemard joined Salada in 2011 as Plant Engineer. He is responsible for leading the
engineering, maintenance and quality portfolios. Prior to joining Salada he worked for a number
of engineering and manufacturing organisations including Deryek A. Gibson, Desnoes and Geddes
and Kraft.
Mr. Lemard holds a Bachelor’s of Engineering degree in Electrical Engineering from the University
of Technology and a Master in Business Administration from Nova South-Eastern University.

(Centre)

DARLENE JACKSON-ANDERSON
(Supply Chain Manager)
Ms. Darlene Jackson-Anderson joined Salada in May 2015. She is responsible for the purchasing,
warehousing and logistics portfolio. Prior to joining Salada she worked at Caribbean Cement
Company for 27 years in various positions including Procurement and Stores Manager. Ms. JacksonAnderson also worked in the insurance industry for three years as an Insurance Sales Agent.
Ms. Jackson-Anderson holds a Diploma in Business Administration and has attended
numerous professional courses in Supply Chain, Logistics, Warehousing and Inventory
Management.

(Right)

ZAYOUS HAMILTON
(Acting Financial Controller)
Mr. Zayous Hamilton joined Salada in January 3, 2011 as the Cost
Accountant. He was promoted to Financial Accountant in April
2017 and to Acting Financial Controller in December 2017. He is
responsible for the accounting portfolio. He is a graduate of
Calabar High School and is completing his ACCA certification.

Annual Report | 2016-17
Salada Foods Jamaica Limited

25

Management

discussion & analysis

T

he year was a rewarding one, turnover was at a record high
and in-line with our strategic plan, and key goals were
accomplished. Sales growth in the domestic market, our
introduction of new products and our focus on engaging
a younger demographic were the main drivers of our performance.
Strategically, with our focus on export growth,
we laid the foundation by attaining Safe Quality
Foods (SQF) Level 2 certification. We spent $18M in
upgrading the factory and canteen infrastructure
as well as, improving our processes and food
safety systems.
USD$85,000 was invested in new equipment, a spray-dryer and
bottle labeler to enhance our manufacturing capability, specifically
to leverage contract manufacturing opportunities.
We also undertook a critical review of the business to ensure
durability and continuity. The result was a sustainable strategy
with five growth pillars, the defining two were export growth and
new products introduction.
Financial Review

Turnover

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

871,733

761,737

660,436

736,369

634,434

Five Year Sales History
Overall, sales to the domestic market were consistent throughout
the year as distribution of our products improved with new
channels being accessed. Sales to the trade through our
distribution partner Lasco were $579.69M, 24% above prior
year. Marketing strategies employed to engage a younger
demographic, were successful. In keeping with our
strategy to launch new products, Jamaica Mountain
Peak flavoured coffees were launched in April 2017.
Our deliberate efforts to engage millennials through
social media platforms as well
as direct marketing through
promotions on the university
campuses also aided our efforts.
As a result, record turnover was
achieved, $871.73M, 14.44%
above prior year’s $761.73M. Our contract
manufacturing line of business also improved
to $127M, representing a 5% increase over prior

Operations & Quality

year. Exports however, declined by 7%,
although we had a strong performance
of our brands in Florida, we continue to
face distribution challenges in the Tri-State area. We are
committed to improving sales in this area with a revised
distribution strategy.
Group Operating Profit and Net Profit

Performance measures implemented have resulted
in further improvements in our packaging line
outputs. This has had a positive impact on both
product margins and factory overhead. This is
despite operational challenges faced during the
implementation of the SQF standard.

Group operating profit was recorded at $80.05M, this compares
favourably to prior year’s results of $74.81M, representing a 7.62%
increase. The resultant net profit was $68.7M comparable to prior
year’s $68.9M. Net profit was negatively impacted from writedowns totalling $55.19M attributable to Pimora Company Limited
($10.56M), pension wind-up ($34.9M), asset held for sale ($4.03M)
and obsolete stock ($5.7M).

Our commitment to quality and importantly safe
quality food is paramount and enhanced by our
recent certification. SQF standards provided rigorous
training to the quality, production and management
teams. Training is ongoing and is administered by
our in-house SQF Practioner and certified external
trainers.

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

$'000

Operating
Profit

80,050

74,816

14,228

117,515

88,208

Net Profit

68,686

68,900

31,652

98,221

83,953

Management remained focused on other critical areas affecting
profitability, inventory and operational expenses. Rationalization
measures implemented and increased sales yielded a 25%
reduction in inventory. Selling and promotional expenses were
35% lower than prior year, with administration expenses adversely
affected by a $35.942M write-down associated to the pension
wind-up.
Dividends
Dividends of 44 cents per stock unit were paid in December 2016,
representing a year-over-year growth rate of 9.1% and a dividend
yield of 5.57% (4.71% in 2015).
Subsidiaries
Mountain Peak Food Processors Limited (MPFP), in-line with our
strategic plan, became the distribution arm of the Group. On May
31, 2017 the remaining 0.20% shares held by minority shareholders
were acquired for $18M, making the company a 100% owned
subsidiary. The subsidiary recorded a profit for the first time since
inception.
Despite our best efforts the Pimora product has not been able
to gain mass appeal both locally and internationally and as such
continues to negatively impact the Group’s performance. The
decision to offer for sale Salada’s interest in the Company resulted
in an impairment of assets, with a resultant net loss of $10.56M.

Human Resources
In September 2017, Mr. Andrew Kerr
Financial Controller resigned. We
extend best wishes to him in his
future endeavors.
In April, 2017, Mrs. Tamii Brown joined the Company
as the Commercial & Corporate Affairs Manager.
Corporate Social Responsibility
We continue to support the Jebb Memorial Basic
School, with our focus being to assist them in
attaining certification from the Early Childhood
Commission as an Early Childhood Educational
Centre. This year, we financed the meshing of
the entire school and installed pest and garbage
disposal systems in an effort to make the facility
rodent free. Additionally, we continue to finance
their lunch programme, fundraising activities and
maintaining the grounds of the school. Our support
for Jebb Memorial and its growing school population
continues to engender goodwill in the surrounding
community, on which we rely for the majority of our
workforce.
Outlook
The demand for instant coffee, teas and ready to
drink products is a solid platform from which to
spring-board our company’s growth. This year we
will launch a new brand of coffee as we seek to grow
market share and go after other market segments
not being reached by our Jamaica Mountain Peak
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brand. Our ginger tea line will also grow to include another healthy
variant.
Exports will grow this year to represent 15% of our total sales as
we fix our distribution in New York and deepen our reach in the
Canadian market.
We will continue to leverage our manufacturing expertise and
capitalize on our contract manufacturing business line, while
developing new products for future introduction.
The revamping of our various product line packaging will continue
as we modernize our Mountain Peak Brand. We will continue to use
social media platforms to engage millennials.
There are inherent risks as the Government shifts its regulatory
stance on the coffee and sugar industries and we will continue to
monitor and lobby to ensure our business is not adversely affected.
As we continue to grow shareholder value, management will
continue to pay close attention to key areas of the business operational expenses, product margins and inventory.

DIANNA BLAKE-BENNETT
(General Manager)

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS
As at 30 September 2017

10 LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
SHAREHOLDERS
RESOURCE IN MOTION LIMITED

SHAREHOLDING
60,233,700

AIC (JAMAICA) LIMITED

8,988,120

DONWIS LIMITED

7,504,280

IDEAL PORTFOLIO SERVICES COMPANY LIMITED

3,327,477

JAMAICAN TEAS LIMITED BUYING ACCOUNT

2,130,257

IDEAL GROUP CORPORATION LIMITED

2,726,000

IDEAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

2,620,000

IDEAL BETTING COMPANY LIMITED

2,755,310

DONOVAN A. LEWIS

1,677,400

CARIBBEAN TRUST & MERCHANT BANK

1,030,760
92,993,304

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS & CONNECTED PARTIES
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
DIRECTORS

TOTAL
SHAREHOLDING

DIRECT

CONNECTED

Bernard, Michael

0

0

0

Hill, Aubyn

0

0

0

81,795,177

1,000

81,794,177

Stultz, Eric*

0

0

120,000

Williams, Patrick

0

0

44,385

Lewis, Kathryn

COMPANY SECRETARY

TOTAL
SHAREHOLDING

Smith, Michelle

DIRECT
0

CONNECTED
0

0

SENIOR MANAGEMENT HOLDINGS
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
SENIOR MANAGERS

TOTAL
SHAREHOLDING

DIRECT

CONNECTED

Blake-Bennett, Dianna

0

0

0

Kerr, Andrew

0

0

0

Lemard, Dave

0

0

0

Lewis, Lorna

0

0

0

N.B:
* As at 30 September 2017, Eric Stultz acquired
120,000 shares, held through Ideal Portfolio
Services Company Limited
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position
September 30, 2017
Notes
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Assets held-for-sale
Investment in subsidiary
companies
Employee benefit asset
Investment
Deferred tax asset
Due from subsidiary
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Biological assets
Due from subsidiary
Tax recoverable

3
4
3(e)
5(a)
6(a)(i)
8(a)
9
5(b)

7
8(b)
10
11
12
5(c)

TOTAL ASSETS
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital
Capital reserves
Retained earnings

13
14

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

15

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Finance lease obligation
Employee benefit obligation
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Current portion of finance lease obligation
Taxation payable
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND LIABILITIES

16
6(b)(i)

17
16

Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

104,263
1,300
39,000

154,454
8,171
43,030

62,588
1,300
-

97,549
-

42,150
46,735
-

24,662
49,071
40,331
-

110,476
42,150
21,886
70,682

111,476
24,662
49,071
8,883
155,387

233,448

319,719

309,082

447,028

146,349
176,302
192,138
209,145
93

126,469
67,863
147,201
279,102
2,050
34

141,301
176,302
119,066
198,579
97,681
-

84,542
67,863
133,171
269,869
2,050
39,846
-

724,027

622,719

732,929

597,341

957,475

942,438

1,042,011

1,044,369

73,216
16,275
712,556

73,216
16,275
686,716

73,216
6,543
817,102

73,216
6,543
806,869

802,047
2,109

776,207
3,054

896,861
-

886,628
-

804,156

779,261

896,861

886,628

5,251
33,370

13,405
32,360

5,251
33,370

13,405
32,360

38,621

45,765

38,621

45,765

94,375
8,154
12,169

102,787
7,415
7,210

86,206
8,154
12,169

97,351
7,415
7,210

114,698

117,412

106,529

111,976

957,475

942,438

1,042,011

1,044,369
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The financial statements on pages 9 to 54 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
November 29, 2017 and signed on its behalf by:
__________________________ Chairman
Patrick Williams

__________________________ Director
Kathryn Lewis

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Group Statement of Profit or Loss
Year ended September 30, 2017

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administration expenses
Selling and promotion expenses
Other expenses
Operating profit before net finance income
and taxation

Notes

2017
$’000

18
20(a)

871,733
(595,482)

761,737
(510,087)

20(c)
20(b)
20(d)

276,251
(148,855)
( 32,756)
( 14,590)

251,650
(126,526)
( 50,308)
-

80,050

74,816

Finance income
Finance costs

19
19

Net finance income

19

Profit before taxation
Taxation

20
21

9,765
( 2,305)

23

13,263
2,108)
11,155

87,510
( 18,824)

85,971
( 17,071)

68,686

68,900

(

$

69,631
945)

(

74,837
5,937)

68,686

68,900

0.67

0.72

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Earnings per share:
Earnings per ordinary stock unit

15

(

7,460

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:
Stockholders of the company
Non-controlling interests

2016
$’000

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Group Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended September 30, 2017
Notes

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

68,686

68,900

12,404
3,101)

17,287
( 4,322)

9,303

12,965

Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Available for sale financial assets net change in
fair value

10,615

-

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

19,918

12,965

Total comprehensive income for the year

88,604

81,865

89,549
945)

87,802
( 5,937)

88,604

81,865

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain on employee benefits
assets and obligation
6(a)(vi), 6(b)(iii)
Tax on re-measurement gain
9

15

(

Salada Foods Jamaica Limited
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Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Stockholders of the company
Non-controlling interests

(

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Group Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
Year ended September 30, 2017

Capital
reserves
(note 14)
$'000

Retained
earnings
$'000

73,216

16,275

651,581

( 2,124)

738,948

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

74,837
12,965

( 5,937)
-

68,900
12,965

Total comprehensive income

-

-

87,802

( 5,937)

81,865

Dividends (note 13)

-

-

( 41,552)

-

( 41,552)

Changes in ownership interests:
Acquisition of non-controlling interest
without change in control

-

-

( 11,115)

11,115

-

73,216

16,275

686,716

3,054

779,261

-

-

69,631

Remeasurement gain on employee
benefits assets and obligation,
net of tax

-

-

9,303

-

9,303

Fair value gains on investments

-

-

10,615

-

10,615

-

-

19,918

-

19,918

Balances at September 30, 2015

Balances at September 30, 2016
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:

Total comprehensive income

(

-

-

89,549

-

-

( 45,709)

-

( 45,709)

Changes in ownership interests:
Acquisition of non-controlling interest
without change in control

-

-

( 18,000)

-

( 18,000)

73,216

16,275

712,556

2,109

804,156

73,216
-

6,543
9,732
-

817,102
(104,546)
-

2,109

896,861
( 94,814)
2,109

73,216

16,275

712,556

2,109

804,156

73,216
-

6,543
9,732
-

806,869
(120,153)
-

3,054

886,628
(110,421)
3,054

73,216

16,275

686,716

3,054

779,261

Retained in the financial statements of:
The company
The subsidiaries
Non controlling interests
Balances at September 30, 2017

Retained in the financial statements of:
The company
The subsidiaries
Non controlling interests
Balances at September 30, 2016

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

945)

68,686

Dividends (note 13)

Balances at September 30, 2017

(

945)

Total
$'000

88,604

43

Noncontrolling
interests
(note 15)
$'000

Share
capital
(note 13)
$'000

Salada Foods Jamaica Limited
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Attributable to stockholders
of the company

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Group Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended September 30, 2017
Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of assets held for sale
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of intangible asset
Write off of biological assets
Income tax expense
Deferred taxation
Interest income
Interest expense
Employee benefits, net

3
4
3(e)
3(a)
4
12
21(a)
21(a)
19

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Cash provided by operations
Interest paid
Taxation paid or deducted at source
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investments, net
Investment in biological assets, net

3
4

Net cash used by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Finance lease obligation
Acquisition of non-controlling interest

15

Net cash (used)/provided by financing activities
Net cash provided before dividends

44

Dividends paid
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Salada Foods Jamaica Limited
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7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

68,686

68,900

57,386
2,228
67
4,030
4,617
5,943
2,050
28,329
( 9,505)
( 7,300)
1,583
38,076

38,595
2,229
60
22,947
( 5,876)
( 5,867)
1,323
5,255

196,190

127,566

69,957
( 44,740)
( 8,412)

61,860
( 56,783)
42,374

212,995
( 1,583)
( 23,428)

175,017
( 1,323)
( 13,410)

187,984

160,284

7,103
( 12,563)
( 1,300)
683
( 90,903)
-

5,792
( 34,238)
4,844
(101,934)
(
33)

( 96,980)

(125,569)

( 7,415)
( 18,000)

20,820
-

( 25,415)

20,820

65,589

55,535

( 45,709)

( 41,552)

19,880
126,469

13,983
112,486

146,349

126,469

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Company Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended September 30, 2017

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administration expenses
Selling and promotion expenses
Other expenses
Operating profit before net finance income
and taxation

Notes

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

18
20(a)

789,444
(564,178)

721,739
(464,330)

20(c)
20(b)
20(d)

225,266
(138,110)
( 11,509)
( 34,006)

257,409
(114,069)
( 38,246)
-

41,641

105,094

Finance income
Finance costs

19
19

Net finance income

19

Profit before taxation
Taxation

20
21

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain on employee benefits,
assets and liabilities
6(a)(vi), 6(b)(iii)
Tax on re-measurement gain
9

8,827
( 2,220)

(

6,607

12,990
1,992)
10,998

48,248
( 12,224)

116,092
( 18,587)

36,024

97,505

(

12,404
3,101)

(

17,287
4,322)
12,965

Items that are or maybe reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Available for sale financial assets net change in
fair value

10,615

-

Other comprehensive profit for the year, net of tax

19,918

12,965

Total comprehensive income for the year

55,942

110,470

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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9,303

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Company Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
Year ended September 30, 2017
Share
capital
(note 13)
$’000

Capital
reserves
(note 14)
$’000

Retained
earnings
$’000

Total
$’000

73,216

6,543

737,951

817,710

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

97,505
12,965

97,505
12,965

Total comprehensive income

-

-

110,470

110,470

Dividend (note 13)

-

-

( 41,552)

( 41,552)

73,216

6,543

806,869

886,628

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

36,024
19,918

36,024
19,918

Total comprehensive income

-

-

55,942

55,942

Dividend (note 13)

-

-

( 45,709)

( 45,709)

73,216

6,543

817,102

896,861

Balances at September 30, 2015
Total comprehensive income for the year:

Balances at September 30, 2016
Total comprehensive income for the year:

Salada Foods Jamaica Limited
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Balances at September 30, 2017

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED

2017
$’000

2016
$’000

36,024

97,505

46,850
2,050
28,328
( 16,104)
( 6,406)
22
19,000
1,583
38,076

32,043
22,824
( 4,237)
( 5,723)
1,323
5,255

149,423

148,990

71,290
14,301
26,870
( 11,145)

57,383
( 52,117)
( 13,160)
43,568

250,739
( 1,583)
( 23,369)

184,664
( 1,323)
( 13,377)

225,787

169,964

6,210
( 90,903)
( 11,969)
58
( 1,300)

5,739
(101,934)
( 40,495)
( 38,468)
(
33)

Net cash used by investing activities

( 97,904)

(175,191)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Finance lease obligation
Acquisition of non-controlling interest

( 7,415)
( 18,000)

20,820
-

( 25,415)

20,820

102,468

15,593

( 45,709)

( 41,552)

56,759
84,542

( 25,959)
110,501

141,301

84,542

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Items not involving cash:
Depreciation
Investment in biological asset
Income tax expense
Deferred taxation
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of investment in subsidiary
Interest expense
Employee benefits, net

3(b)
12
21(a)
21(a)
19
5

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories
Accounts receivable
Due from/(to) subsidiary
Accounts payable
Cash provided by operations
Interest paid
Taxation paid
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Investments
Investment in subsidiary companies
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of asset
Investment in intangible assets

3(b)
4

Net cash used by financing acitivites
Net cash provided before dividends
Dividends paid

13

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Company Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended September 30, 2017

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended September 30, 2017
1.

Identification
Salada Foods Jamaica Limited (“the company”) is incorporated and domiciled in Jamaica. Its
principal activity is the manufacture and sale of instant coffee and roasted and ground coffee
beans and other consumer products. The company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred
to as “the group” [also see note 2(c)]. The company’s registered office is located at 20 Bell
Road, Kingston 11, Jamaica West Indies. Effective February 1, 2017, the company outsourced
the distribution of its core products in local market to its subsidiary, Mountain Peak Food
Processors Limited. During the year, operations of another subsidiary, Pimora Company
Limited were discontinued.
The company is listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchange.
A shareholder of the company controls 76% of the voting rights in the company.

2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies
(a)

Statement of compliance:
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and their interpretations, issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and comply with the provisions of the Jamaican
Companies Act.
New, revised and amended standards that became effective during the year
Certain new and amended standards came into effect during the current financial year.
The group has assessed and adopted those which are relevant to its financial statements.
New, revised and amended standards not yet effective
At the date of approval of the financial statements, there were certain new, revised and
amended standards and interpretations which were in issue but not yet effective. Those
which are considered relevant to the group are as follows:

Salada Foods Jamaica Limited
Annual Report | 2016-17

48

•

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised
guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities,
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment of financial
assets and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also carries forward
the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from IAS
39. Although the permissible measurement bases for financial assets – amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value
though profit or loss (FVTPL) - are similar to IAS 39, the criteria for classification
into the appropriate measurement category are significantly different. IFRS 9
replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in IAS 39 with an ‘expected credit loss’ model,
which means that a loss event will no longer need to occur before an impairment
allowance is recognised.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Statement of compliance (cont’d):
New, revised and amended standards not yet effective (cont’d)
•

IFRS 15, Revenue From Contracts With Customers, effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, replaces IAS 11, Construction
Contracts, IAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15,
Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from
Customers and SIC-31 Revenue – Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services. It does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall in the scope of other IFRSs. It also does not apply if two
entities in the same line of business exchange non-monetary assets to facilitate
sales to other parties.
The Group will apply a five-step model to determine when to recognise revenue,
and at what amount. The model specifies that revenue should be recognised when
(or as) an entity transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount
to which the entity expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are
met, revenue is recognised at a point in time, when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customer; or over time, in a manner that best reflects the entity’s
performance.
There will be new qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements to describe
the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
contracts with customers.

•

IFRS 16, Leases, which is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2019, eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees,
which distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet
operating leases. Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet accounting model that
is similar to current finance lease accounting. Entities will be required to bring all
major leases on-balance sheet, recognising new assets and liabilities. The onbalance sheet liability will attract interest; the total lease expense will be higher in
the early years of a lease even if a lease has fixed regular cash rentals. Optional
lessee exemption will apply to short- term leases and for low-value items with
value of US$5,000 or less.
Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice as the lessor will continue to
classify leases as finance and operating leases.
Early adoption is permitted if IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, is
also adopted.

49

(a)
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(a)

Statement of compliance (cont’d):
New, revised and amended standards not yet effective (cont’d)
•

Amendments to IAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017, requires an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
flows.

•

Amendments to IAS 12, Income Taxes, effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2017, clarifies the following:
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•

•

The existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the
reporting period, and is not affected by possible future changes in the carrying
amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset.

•

A deferred tax asset can be recognised if the future bottom line of the tax return
is expected to be a loss, if certain conditions are met.

•

Future taxable profits used to establish whether a deferred tax can be
recognised should be the amount calculated before the effect of reversing
temporary differences.

•

An entity can assume that it will recover an asset for more than its carrying
amount if there is sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will
achieve this.

•

Deductible temporary differences related to unrealised losses should be
assessed on a combined basis for recognition unless a tax law restricts the use
of losses to deductions against income of a specific type.

Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016
applicable to the group as follows:
•

contain amendments to certain standards

IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, effective retrospectively for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, has been
amended to clarify that the disclosure requirements for interests in other
entities also apply to interests that are classified as held for sale or distribution.

The group is assessing the impact, if any, of the amendments and new standards on its
financial statements when the standards become effective.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(b)

Basis of preparation:
The financial statements are presented in Jamaica dollars ($), which is the functional
currency of the group. All financial information presented in Jamaica dollars have been
rounded to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated.
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. The significant
accounting policies stated in paragraphs (c) to (aa) below conform in all material respects
with IFRS.
Basis of consolidation:
(i)

A “subsidiary” is an enterprise controlled by the company. The company controls
an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights, to the variable returns form its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.
The balance in the consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the company and its subsidiaries:
Holding

Main activity

Territory of
incorporation

Coffee Company of
Jamaica Limited

100%

Dormant entity

Jamaica

Shirriff’s (Jamaica)
Limited

100%

Dormant entity

Jamaica

Mountain Peak Food
Processors Limited*

100%

Distribution and sale of instant
coffee, juices and condiments
(see note 1)

Jamaica

Manufacture of flavoured
Briquettes (see note 1)

Jamaica

Entity

Pimora Company
Limited
*
(ii)

70%

In May 2017, the company acquired the remaining 0.20% of Mountain Peak
Food Processors Limited, making the company a wholly owned subsidiary.
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(c)

Loss of control:
On the loss of control, the group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related
to the subsidiary. Any gain or loss arising on the loss of control is recognized in
profit or loss. If the group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such
interest is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost.
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(c)

Basis of consolidation (cont’d):
(iii) Non-controlling interests:
Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the group’s interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.
(iv)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Balances and transactions between companies within the group, and any unrealised
gains arising from those transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from transactions between the group
and its subsidiaries are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the
subsidiary. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements:
The preparation of the financial statements to conform to IFRS requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities,
contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the reporting date and the income and
expense for the year then ended. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in
the next financial year are discussed below:
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(i)

Pension and other post-retirement benefits:
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position and statement of
comprehensive income for pension and other post-retirement benefits are
determined actuarially using several assumptions. The primary assumptions used in
determining the amounts recognised include expected long-term return on plan
assets, the discount rate used to determine the present value of estimated future
cash flows required to settle the pension and other post-retirement obligations.
The expected return on plan assets considers the long-term returns, asset allocation
and future estimates of long-term investment returns. The discount rate is
determined based on the estimate of yield on long-term government securities that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the company’s obligation; in the
absence of such instruments in Jamaica, it has been necessary to estimate the rate
by extrapolating from the longest-tenor security on the market. Any changes in the
foregoing assumptions will affect the amounts recorded in the financial statements
for these obligations.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(d)

Use of estimates and judgements (cont’d):
(ii)

Allowance for impairment losses on receivables:
In determining amounts recorded for impairment of losses in the financial
statements, management makes judgements regarding indicators of impairment,
that is, whether there are indicators that suggest there may be a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from receivables, for example, based on
default and adverse economic conditions. Management also makes estimates of the
likely estimated future cash flows from impaired receivables as well as the timing
of such cash flows. Historical loss experience is applied where indicators of
impairment are not observable on individual significant receivables with similar
characteristics, such as credit risks.

(iii) Net realisable value of inventories:
Estimates of net realisable value are based on the most reliable evidence available
at the time the estimates are made, of the amount the inventories are expected to
realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly
relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events
confirm conditions existing at the end of the period.
Estimates of net realisable value also take into consideration the purpose for which
the inventory is held.
It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within the
next financial year that are different from those assumptions could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount reflected in the financial statements.
Property, plant and equipment:
(i)

Property, plant and equipment are measured at historical cost or deemed cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of replacing
part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the group and its cost can be measured reliably. The
costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
profit or loss.
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(e)
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(e)

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d):
(ii)

Depreciation:
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis at annual rates estimated to write
down the property, plant and equipment to their estimated residual values at the
end of their expected useful lives. No depreciation is charged on the freehold land.
Annual depreciation rates are as follows:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

2.5 - 10%
2.5 - 10%
2.5 - 20%
20%

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the
reporting date.
(f)

Assets held-for-sale:
Non-current assets, or disposal group comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected
to be recovered primarily through sale, rather than continuing use, are classified as heldfor-sale. Assets held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
values less cost to sell.
Impairment losses on initial reclassification as held-for-sale and subsequent gains and
losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss. Once classified as held-forsale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

(g)

Investment in subsidiary companies:
Investments in subsidiary companies are measured at cost.
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(h)

Employee benefits:
Employee benefits comprising pensions and other post-employment assets and
obligations included in these financial statements have been actuarially determined by a
qualified independent actuary, appointed by management. The appointed actuary’s report
outlines the scope of the valuation and the actuary’s opinion. The actuarial valuations
were conducted in accordance with IAS 19, and the financial statements reflect the
group’s post-employment benefits asset as computed by the actuary. In carrying out their
audit, the auditors make use of the work of the actuary and the actuary’s report.
(i)

Pension arrangements:
The group operates a defined benefit plan, the assets of which are generally held in
a separate trustee-administered fund. A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that
defines an amount of pension benefit to be provided, usually as a function of one or
more factors such as age, years of service or compensation. The Plan was
discontinued as of August 31, 2017 (see note 6).

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(h)

Employee benefits (cont’d):
(i)

Pension arrangements (cont’d):
The group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits that employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that value is discounted
to determine the present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. To
the extent that the obligation is less than the fair value of plan assets, the asset
recognised is restricted to the discounted value of future benefits available to the
group.
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the
asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income.
The discount rate applied is based on the rate used to discount the defined benefit
obligations. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary, using the projected
unit credit method.

(ii)

Other post-retirement benefits:
The post-retirement medical benefits for employees and pensioners are sponsored
by the company that pays the full premiums on an Insured Health Plan.

(iii) Other employee benefits:
Employee entitlements to leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for vacation leave, as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the statement of financial position date.
Inventories:
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on the weighted average cost basis. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress
comprises raw and packaging materials, direct labour, other direct costs and a proportion
of related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The cost of other inventories is based on the first in first out principles and includes
expenses incurred in acquiring and bringing them to their existing location and condition.
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(j)

Biological assets:
Biological assets consists materially of ginger rhizomes cultivation expenses, which will
be written off against the crop to which they relate. Ginger rhizomes are not sold but,
when harvested are used in production, and no active market exists for these assets.
Valuation based on a discounted cash flow method is considered to be unreliable given
the uncertainty with respect to the harvesting quantities and costs. Consequently, the
balance is stated at cost less impairment losses, measured by reference to estimated crop
proceeds less cultivation, reaping, harvesting and transportation expenses to the point of
sale.

(k)

Accounts receivable:
Trade and other receivables are measured at amortised cost, less impairment losses.

(l)

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, other short-term
investments and other monetary instruments with maturities ranging between one and
three months from the reporting date.

(m)

Investments:
Investments are classified as loans and receivables or available-for-sale. Loans and
receivables are those that have a fixed or determinable payment and which are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables investments are initially measured at cost and
subsequently at amortised cost, calculated on the effective interest rate method, less
impairment losses.
Available-for-sale investments are initially recognised at cost and subsequently at fair
value where a quoted market price is available in an active market. Any resultant gain or
loss is recognised in investment revaluation reserve through other comprehensive income.
This is done until the investment is sold or otherwise disposed of, or when the carrying
amount of the investment is judged to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in investment revaluation reserve is transferred to profit or
loss.
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(n)

Accounts payable:
Trade and other payables are measured at amortised cost.

(o)

Provisions:
A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company and its
subsidiaries have a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If
the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the obligation.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(p)

Impairment:
The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or group of operating assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
(i)

Calculation of recoverable amount:
The recoverable amount of the group’s receivables is calculated as the present
value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate
inherent in the asset. Receivables with a short duration are not discounted.
The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of their net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For an asset that does not generate independent cash inflows, the recoverable
amount is determined for the group of operating assets to which the asset belongs.

(ii)

Reversals of impairment:
An impairment loss in respect of receivables is reversed if the subsequent increase
in recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.
In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Revenue:
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised in profit or loss when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due or material
associated costs on the possible return of goods.

(r)

Net finance income:
Net finance income comprises interest payable on long-term loan, calculated using the
effective interest rate method, interest income on funds invested, material bank charges
and foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the yield
on the asset.
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(s)

Income tax:
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.
Deferred tax is provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted at the reporting date.
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except to the extent that the group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

(t)

Dividends:
Dividends are recognised in the period in which they are declared.

(u)

Determination of profit and loss:
Profit is determined as the difference between the revenues from the goods and services
rendered and the costs and other charges incurred during the year. Profits on transactions
are taken in the year in which they are realised. A transaction is realised at the moment
of delivery. Losses are taken in the year in which they are realised or determinable.
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(v)

Foreign currencies:
Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies,
which are stated at historical cost, are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the
reporting date. Foreign exchange differences arising from fluctuations in exchange rates
are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, which are stated at historical cost, are translated at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated to the
functional currency at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates that the values were
determined.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
Related parties:
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its
financial statements (referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting
entity”).
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if
that person:
(i)

has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.
(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the
reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related
to the reporting entity.
(vi) The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between
related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(x)

Intangible assets:
Research and development
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific
technical knowledge and understanding, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes. Development expenditure is capitalised only if
development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to
and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour, overhead costs that
are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. Other development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is calculated using the straight
line method to allocate cost over five years.

(y)

Segment reporting:
An operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses; whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the entity’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assesses its performance;
and for which discrete financial information is available.
Based on the information presented to and reviewed by the CODM, the entire operations
of the company are considered as one operating segment.

(z)

Financial instruments:
(i)

General:
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A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
enterprise and a financial liability or equity instrument of another enterprise.
For the purposes of the financial statements, financial assets have been determined
to include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and due from subsidiary.
Financial liabilities comprise accounts payable and due to subsidiary.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(z)

Financial instruments (cont’d):
(ii)

Recognition and derecognition:
A financial instrument is recognised if the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the
company’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if
the company transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control
or substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. Regular way
purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for at transaction date, i.e., the
date that the company commits itself to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
liabilities are derecognised if the company’s obligations specified in the contract
expire or are discharged or cancelled.

(aa) Finance leases:
(i)

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the company determines whether an arrangement is
or contains a lease. If the company concludes for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are
recognised as the amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset;
subsequently, the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance
cost on the liability is recognised using the company’s incremental borrowing rate.

(ii)

Leased assets:
Assets held by the company under leases that transfer to the company substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The
leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases are classified as operating leases and are not
recognised in the company’s statement of financial position.
(iii) Lease payments:
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straightline basis over the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the
finance expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
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The depreciation rates applied to leased assets are consistent with similar owned
assets, except where there is no reasonable certainty that the lessee will obtain
ownership by the end of the lease term, in which case the asset is depreciated at the
shorter of the lease term and its useful life.
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
3.

Property, plant and equipment

(a)

The Group:

Freehold
land
$’000

Freehold
buildings and
infrastructure
$’000

Machinery
equipment &
vehicles
$’000

Total
$’000

At cost or deemed cost:
September 30, 2015
Additions
Disposals

10,000
-

52,445
-

311,085
34,238
( 7,847)

373,530
34,238
( 7,847)

September 30, 2016
Additions
Disposals

10,000
-

52,445
1,131
-

337,476
11,432
(
977)

399,921
12,563
(
977)

September 30, 2017

10,000

53,576

347,931

411,507

Depreciation:
September 30, 2015
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

-

35,500
4,122
-

174,315
34,473
( 2,943)

209,815
38,595
( 2,943)

September 30, 2016
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Impairment loss

-

39,622
3,140
-

205,845
54,246
(
226)
4,617

245,467
57,386
(
226)
4,617

September 30, 2017

-

42,762

264,482

307,244

September 30, 2017

10,000

10,814

83,449

104,263

September 30, 2016

10,000

12,823

131,631

154,454

Net book values:
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During the year, the group recognised an impairment loss of $4,617,000 relating to
machinery and equipment of its subsidiary, due to discontinued manufacturing and
trading of its primary product. Management is in the process of identifying a prospective
buyer for assets in that subsidiary. The estimated net realisable value of these assets
approximate $4,800,000.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
(b)

The Company:
Freehold
land
$’000
At cost or deemed cost:
September 30, 2015
Additions

Freehold
Machinery
buildings and equipment &
infrastructure
vehicles
$’000
$’000

Total
$’000

6,144
-

34,880
-

229,585
38,468

270,609
38,468

September 30, 2016
Additions
Disposals

6,144
-

34,880
1,131
-

268,053
10,838
(
167)

309,077
11,969
(
167)

September 30, 2017

6,144

36,011

278,724

320,879

-

21,390
3,037

158,095
29,006

179,485
32,043

September 30, 2016
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal

-

24,427
2,054
-

187,101
44,796
(
87)

211,528
46,850
(
87)

September 30, 2017

-

26,481

231,810

258,291

Depreciation:
September 30, 2015
Charge for the year

Net book values:

(c)

September 30, 2017

6,144

9,530

46,914

62,588

September 30, 2016

6,144

10,453

80,952

97,549

At reporting date, property, plant and equipment subject to finance lease arrangements
are included in machinery equipment and vehicles as follows (see note 16):

At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

25,111
( 5,952)

25,111
( 2,976)

19,159

22,135

(d)

Freehold land and buildings were professionally valued on a fair market value basis by
Stoppi Cairney Bloomfield in September 2001. These values have been incorporated into
the financial statements as deemed costs as at the date of transition to IFRS (October 1,
2001). The surpluses arising from these adjustments were credited to capital reserves
(note 14).

(e)

Assets held-for-sale:
This represents land and building located at 7 Norwich Avenue, Kingston 11, and
classified as held for sale, following the decision of the directors to sell and it is expected
that the sale was completed in November 2017.
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The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
3.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)
(e)

Assets held-for-sale (cont’d):
This comprise:

Land and building
Less: Impairment losses (see note below)

The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
43,030
43,030
( 4,030)
39,000

43,030

During the year, the group recognised an impairment loss of $4,030,000 to adjust the
carrying value of these assets to net realisable value.
4.

Intangible asset
The
Group

The
Company

$’000

$’000

11,143
1,300

1,300

September 30, 2017

12,443

1,300

Amortisation:
September 30, 2015
Charge for year

743
2,229

-

September 30, 2016
Charge for year
Impairment loss

2,972
2,228
5,943

-

11,143

-

Net book value:
September 30, 2017

1,300

1,300

September 30, 2016

8,171

-

This represents development costs incurred.
At cost:
September 30, 2015 and 2016
Additions

September 30, 2017
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During the year, the group recognised an impairment loss of $5,943,000 relating to intangible asset
in its subsidiary, due to discontinued manufacturing and trading of its primary product.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
5.

Investment in subsidiary companies and due from/to subsidiary companies
(a)

Investment in subsidiary companies comprises:

Shares at cost:
Coffee Company of Jamaica Limited
Shirriff’s (Jamaica) Limited
Mountain Peak Food Processors Limited
[see note 2(c)(i)]
Pimora Company Limited

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
790
91

790
91

102,595
7,000

84,595
26,000

110,476

111,476

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
(b)

Due from subsidiary (due after twelve months):
Mountain Peak Food Processors Limited

70,682

155,387

(c)

Due from subsidiary (within twelve months):
Pimora Company Limited
Mountain Peak Food Processors Limited - trading
Mountain Peak Food Processors Limited – other

52,681
45,000

9,403
30,443

97,681

39,846

During the year, the company recognised an impairment loss of $15,006,000 relating to a
related party balance and $19,000,000 relating to an investment in its subsidiary, Pimora
Limited, due to discontinued manufacturing and trading of its primary product.
See note 2(c)(i) for share ownership in subsidiaries
Employee benefits
Defined benefit pension plan:
The Group operates a pension plan which provides retirement and death benefits to its
employees. The plan is administered by trustees and is managed by Guardian Life
Limited. Contributions to the plan are made by the company and employees based on a
percentage of the employees’ pensionable earnings. Retirement benefits are based on the
final pensionable salary which is the members’ annualised pensionable salary as at the
normal retirement date.
Pursuant to Section 27(4) of the Pensions (Superannuation Funds and Retirement
Schemes) Act (the “Act”), the FSC granted approval for the winding up of the plan with
termination date effective August 31, 2017. The effects of the winding up are reflected
below:
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(a)
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
6.

Employee benefits (cont’d)
(a)

Defined benefit pension plan (cont’d):
(i)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as
follows:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Fair value of plan assets
Present value of funded obligation

(ii)

83,006
(83,006)

68,938
(44,276)

-

24,662

The movement in the asset recognised in the statement of financial position is as
follows:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
At beginning of year
Contributions paid
Pension expenses recognised in profit or loss
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income
At end of year

24,662
1,232
(36,782)

16,389
1,402
( 3,018)

10,888

9,889

-

24,662

(iii) The movement in present value of funded obligations is as follows:
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The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
At beginning of year
Benefit paid
Employees’ contributions
Current service and interest costs
Curtailment gain
Plan termination benefit
Actuarial gain due to:
Experience gain

(44,276)
1,263
( 2,297)
( 6,628)
7,571
(42,513)

(41,378)
4,802
( 2,762)
( 7,434)
-

3,874

2,496

At end of year

(83,006)

(44,276)

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Employee benefits (cont’d)
Defined benefit pension plan (cont’d):
(iv)

The movement in the plan assets is as follows:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Contributions paid
Interest income on plan assets
Benefit paid
Re-measurement gain on plan assets
included in OCI
Administrative fees

68,938
3,529
5,633
( 1,263)
(

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

57,767
4,162
5,033
( 4,802)

7,014
845)

7,393
615)

(

83,006

68,938

The assets of the fund are invested in Guardian Life’s Pooled Investment and
Money Market Fund and the Deposit Administration Fund as at August 31, 2017
and September 30, 2016 as follows:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$'000
%
$'000
Pooled Investment and Money
Market Fund
Deposit Administration Fund

(v)

%

76,256
6,750

92
8

63,140
5,798

92
8

83,006

100

68,938

100

The amounts recognised in profit or loss included in staff costs are as follows:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Employer’s current service cost
Interest income on plan assets
Interest costs on obligation
Plan termination benefit
Curtailment gain
Administrative fees
At the end of the year

3,062
( 5,633)
3,566
42,513
( 7,571)
845

3,941
(5,033)
3,495
615

36,782

3,018
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
6.

Employee benefits (cont’d)
(a)

Defined benefit pension plan (cont’d):
(vi)

Components of defined benefit income recognised in other comprehensive income
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
Remeasurement of plan assets

(vii)

3,874
7,014

2,496
7,393

10,888

9,889

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
The Group and
the Company
2017
2016
%
%
Discount rate
Future salary increases
Future pension increases
Inflation rate

9.0
7.0
2.5
6.5

9.0
7.0
2.5
5.5

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on GAM 94 table, with no age
set back. The expected long-term discount rate on plan assets is based on the
assumed long-term rate of inflation.
At September 30, 2016 the weighted average duration at the defined benefit
obligation was 12.8 years.
(viii) A one percentage point change at the reporting date to one of the relevant
actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected
the defined benefit obligations by amounts shown below:
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Actuarial assumption
Discount rate
Assumed rate of salary
escalation
Future rate of pension

2017
One
One
percentage
percentage
point increase
point decrease
$’000
$’000

One
percentage
point increase
$’000

2016

One
percentage
point decrease
$’000

-

-

(4,881)

6,000

-

-

1,901
3,641

(1,724)
(3,142)

As mortality continues to improve, estimates of life expectancy are expected to
increase. An increase of one year in life expectancy will increase the employee
benefit obligation by approximately $Nil (2016: $610,000), while a decrease of
one year in life expectancy will result in an equal but opposite effect.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Employee benefits (cont’d)
Defined benefit pension plan (cont’d):
(ix)
(b)

The estimated pension contribution expected to be paid into the defined benefit
plan during the next financial year is $Nil (2016: $1,312,311).

Post retirement medical benefit obligation:
In 2010, a resolution was passed for the company to sponsor a post-retirement benefit
scheme which covers health care for its full-time employees and its pensioners. The
method of accounting and valuation are similar to that used for the defined benefit
pension plan.
(i)

Movement in the present value of the obligations:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
Balance at beginning of year
Current service costs
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains arising from:
Experience adjustments
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions
Balance at end of year

(ii)

32,360
1,899
2,814
( 2,187)

36,119
2,628
3,154
( 2,143)

( 2,888)
( 2,232)
3,604

( 5,892)
( 1,506)
-

33,370

32,360

Components of benefit costs recognised in the statement of profit or loss:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
Current service costs
Interest on obligation

1,899
2,814

2,628
3,154

4,713

5,782

(iii) Credit recognised in other comprehensive income:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
Experience adjustments
Changes in demographic assumptions
Changes in financial assumptions

(2,888)
(2,232)
3,604

( 5,892)
( 1,506)
-

Re-measurement loss on obligation

(1,516)

( 7,398)
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
6.

Employee benefits (cont’d)
(b)

Post retirement medical benefit obligation (cont’d):
(iv)

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
Discount rate
Health cost inflation

9.0%
8.5%

9.0%
7.5%

Post-employment mortality for active members and mortality for pensioners is
based on the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Tables (GAM) 94 table (U.S. mortality
tables) with no age setback.
At September 30, 2017 the weighted average duration at the defined benefit
obligation was 12.4 years (2016: 12.7 years).
The actuarial assumption regarding mortality, inflation etc. follow the same bases
as those outlined in note 6(a)(vii) above.
(v)

A one percentage point change at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the medical
benefit obligations by amounts shown below:

Actuarial assumption
Discount rate
Medical inflation rate

7.

2017
One
One
percentage
percentage
point increase
point decrease
$’000
$’000
(3,560)
4,347

One
percentage
point increase
$’000

4,369
(3,604)

(3,537)
4,413

2016

One
percentage
point decrease
$’000
4,391
(3,612)

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise:
The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
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Cash in hand and bank
Short-term deposits

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

71,012
75,337

38,246
88,223

66,373
74,928

26,415
58,127

146,349

126,469

141,301

84,542

At the reporting date, cash in hand and bank include US$271,000 (2016: US$152,000). The
company’s short-term deposits include US$384,000 (2016: US$381,000). At the reporting
date, an amount of $45,698,000 (2016: $25,476,000) was held as deposit with a related party.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
8.

Investment
(a) Long-term

The Group and
the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

Fixed deposits
Available for sale - Equity investment

42,150

49,071
-

42,150

49,071

(b) Short-term
The Group and
the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Resale agreements (i)
Fixed deposits (ii)
Equity investment
(i)

113,967
62,335
-

31,915
27,448
8,500

176,302

67,863

The fair value of the securities under resale agreements approximates the carrying
value of the agreements. The resale agreements include US$653,697 (2016:
US$250,000) which earns interest at a rate of 1.3% to 2.25% (2016: 1.5%-2.25% per
annum).

(ii) Fixed deposit includes US$486,330 (2016: US$215,000) and earns interest at 1.55%
to 3% (2016: 8.35% per annum).
At the reporting date, the company had investments of $158,084,000 (2016: $67,863,000) with
Ideal Finance Corporation Limited and Ideal Portfolio Services Company Limited, both being
related parties.
Deferred taxation

This comprises:

Net deferred tax asset

The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
46,735

40,331

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
21,886

71

Deferred income taxes are calculated on temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes,
using an effective tax rate of 25%.

8,883
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
9.

Deferred taxation (cont’d)
Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following:

October 1,
2016
$’000
Accounts payable
Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits assets, net
Unrealised gain on exchange
Tax value of losses carried forward
Accrued interest receivable

244
8,576
9,519
44
(8,829)
( 49)

(3,101)
-

799
12,308
8,343
54
25,488
( 257)

40,331

9,505

(3,101)

46,735

72
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2016
The Group
Recognition
Recognised
in other
in
comprehensive
income
income
$’000
$’000
(note 21)

September
30,
2016
$’000

998
( 3,800)
4,933
9
36,848
( 211)

( 443)
7,532
1,314
1
(2,531)
3

(4,322)
-

555
3,732
1,925
10
34,317
( 208)

38,777

5,876

(4,322)

40,331

October 1,
2016
$’000
Accounts payable
Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits assets, net
Unrealised gain on exchange
Accrued interest receivable

September
30,
2017
$’000

555
3,732
1,925
10
34,317
( 208)

October 1,
2015
$’000
Accounts payable
Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits assets, net
Unrealised gain on exchange
Tax value of losses carried forward
Accrued interest receivable

2017
The Group
Recognition
Recognised
in other
in
comprehensive
income
income
$’000
$’000
(note 21)

2017
The Company
Recognition
Recognised
in other
in
comprehensive
income
income
$’000
$’000
(note 21)
(

September
30,
2017
$’000

556
6,600
1,925
10
( 208)

26)
6,616
9,519
44
(
49)

(3,101)
-

530
13,216
8,343
54
( 257)

8,883

16,104

(3,101)

21,886

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
9.

Deferred taxation (cont’d)
Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following (cont’d):

October 1,
2015
$’000
Accounts payable
Property, plant and equipment
Employee benefits assets, net
Unrealised gain on exchange
Accrued interest receivable

2016
The Company
Recognition
Recognised
in other
in
comprehensive
income
income
$’000
$’000
(note 21)

1,001
3,236
4,933
9
( 211)

(

8,968

10.

Accounts receivable
2017
$’000
Trade receivables
Prepayments
Other receivables
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts

(

445)
3,364
1,314
1
3

(4,322)
-

556
6,600
1,925
10
( 208)

4,237

(4,322)

8,883

The Group

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

158,464
25,426
12,845
196,735
4,597)

131,744
14,722
5,681
(

192,138

September
30,
2016
$’000

152,147
4,946)

84,923
21,285
12,862
(

147,201

119,070
4)
119,066

121,742
5,782
5,651
(

133,175
4)
133,171

The exposure of the group and company to credit and currency risks and impairment losses
relating to trade and other receivables are disclosed in note 24(a)(i).

2017
$’000
Raw and packaging material
Finished goods held for sale
Work-in-progress
Fuel, spares and consumables
Provision for obsolescence

The Group

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

2016
$’000

106,536
39,608
46,526
26,743

124,836
78,090
58,876
20,751

101,893
31,087
46,526
26,273

119,292
71,421
58,876
20,280

219,413

282,553

205,779

269,869

( 10,268)
209,145

(

3,451)
279,102

(

7,200)
198,579

-

73

Inventories

269,869

During the year, inventory write-offs aggregating $5,929,000 (2016: $7,466,000) were
recognised in profit or loss.
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
12.

Biological assets
This represents immature ginger rhizomes at cost.
Immature ginger rhizomes under cultivation represented five acres of farm land.
(a)

Reconciliation of carrying amount:

Balance as at October 1
Overhead and other associated costs
Stock loss – rhizomes
Harvested rhizomes transferred to inventory during the year
Balance as at September 30
13.

Share capital

Authorised:
500,000,000 ordinary units of no par value
Stated:
Issued and fully paid:
103,883,300 ordinary stock units of no par value

The Group and
the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
2,050
(2,050)
-

2,017
3,581
(3,548)

-

2,050

The Group and
the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

73,216

73,216
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In a meeting of the Board of Directors held on November 17, 2016 a dividend of 44 cents per
share was declared (November 19, 2015: a dividend of 40 cents per share was declared).

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Capital reserves
The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Revaluation surplus on assets carried
at deemed cost
Realised gains

14,528
1,747

14,528
1,747

4,838
1,705

4,838
1,705

16,275

16,275

6,543

6,543

Non-controlling interests
This represents non-controlling interests in the company’s subsidiaries as follows:
% interest
2017
2016
Mountain Peak Food Processors Limited
Pimora Limited

0%
30%

0.2%
30%

The following table summarises the information relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries
that has material NCI, before any intra-group eliminations.
The Group

2017
Mountain
Peak Food Pimora
Processors Company
Limited
Limited
0%
30%
$’000
$’000
Percentage ownership interest:
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

57,665
124,394
(115,682)
( 59,692)

Net (liabilities)/assets (30%)
NCI share of subsidiary net (liabilities)/assets
Revenue
Total comprehensive profit/loss for the year
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests (NCI)

Total
$’000

4,893
3,292
( 1,156)

62,558
127,686
(115,682)
( 60,848)

6,685

7,029

13,714

-

2,109

2,109

-

-

-

17,696

( 4,197)

13,499

-

(

945)

(

( 38,494)
31,669
-

( 4,885)
( 9,997)
-

( 43,379)
21,672
-

Net decrease/(increase) in cash and cash
equivalent

(

(14,882)

( 21,707)

6,825)

117,105
61,900
(190,017)

17,577
4,297
(11,622)

( 11,012)

10,252

(

22)
194

( 13,355)

945) (

Cashflow from operating activities
Cashflow from investing activites
Cashflow from financing activities

2016

Mountain
Peak Food Pimora
Processors Company
Limited Limited
0.2%
30%
$’000
$’000

Total

134,682
66,197
(201,639)
(

3,076
(14,434)

760)
3,054
196

( 27,789)

1,607)

( 4,330)

(

( 9,188)
( 21,683)
40,495

( 9,787)
10,009
-

( 18,975)
( 11,674)
40,495

9,624

222

5,937)

9,846

75

15.

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
15.

Non-controlling interests (cont’d)
In July 2017 the Group acquired additional 0.2% for a consideration of $18,000,000 in Mountain
Peak Food Processors Limited increasing its ownership from 99.8% to 100% (August 2016: the
Group acquired additional 19.80% interest in Mountain Peak Food Processors Limited
increasing its ownership from 80% to 99.80%).

16.

Obligations under finance lease
Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows:
The Group and the Company
2017
$’000

2016
$’000

8,999
5,408

8,999
14,406

Less: Future Finance Charge

14,407
( 1,002)

23,405
( 2,585)

Present value of minimum lease payments
Less Current Portion

13,405
( 8,154)

20,820
( 7,415)

5,251

13,405

Within 1 year
In 2 to 5 years

The fair value of the finance lease liability approximates its carrying amount.
Finance leases relates to the purchase of an x-ray machine and motor vehicles with lease terms
of 3 years. The company’s obligation under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s title to
the leased assets. The carrying value of leased assets amounts to $19,159,000
(2016:$22,135,000 (see note 3).
17.

Accounts payable

Trade payables
Accrued charges
Other payables

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

23,763
38,267
32,345

52,503
27,856
22,428

21,114
32,747
32,345

49,368
25,558
22,425

94,375

102,787

86,206

97,351

76

The group’s and company’s exposure to liquidity risks to accounts payable is disclosed in note
24.
18.
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The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

Sales
Sales comprise the invoiced value of goods sold, net of general consumption tax, rebates and
discounts.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Net finance income

Finance income:
Interest income
Foreign exchange gain
Finance costs:
Bank charges and interest

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

7,300
2,465

5,867
7,396

6,406
2,421

5,723
7,267

9,765

13,263

8,827

12,990

( 2,305)

( 2,108)

( 2,220)

( 1,992)

7,460

11,155

6,607

10,998

Nature of expenses
Profit before taxation is stated after charging:
(a)

Cost of goods sold:
The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Depreciation
Insurance
Outsourcing
Other
Repairs and maintenance
Security
Utilities
Salaries and other related costs
Raw material and consumables

(b)

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

51,692
5,406
62,919
8,501
17,076
10,113
29,425
28,535
381,815

28,789
5,810
56,160
2,990
13,123
10,711
26,248
30,606
335,650

42,662
4,691
61,526
8,244
16,291
7,160
28,888
28,535
366,181

25,110
4,505
54,736
2,162
12,680
6,878
25,680
27,885
304,694

595,482

510,087

564,178

464,330

Selling and promotion expenses:

Advertising and promotions
Bad debt
Delivery and handling charges
Other
Outsourcing
Salaries and other related costs

The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

11,506
3,878
4,873
1,601
10,898

23,669
5,632
3,069
3,871
14,067

4,623
1,459
3,321
2,106

20,532
655
2,121
2,753
12,185

32,756

50,308

11,509

38,246

77
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The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
20.

Disclosure of expenses (cont’d)
(c)

Administration expenses:

Audit fees
Computer expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Director fees
Insurance
Outsourcing
Other
Legal and professional fees
Redundancy pay
Registrar and AGM expenses
Retirement benefit, net
Salaries and other related costs
Utilities

The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

3,905
3,116
8,640
8,949
1,250
14,138
6,969
12,321
2,334
38,076
45,252
3,905

3,520
4,596
12,035
8,949
1,322
19,567
6,646
9,571
2,450
1,662
5,255
48,135
2,818

2,090
2,955
4,188
8,949
1,250
14,138
6,984
7,989
2,334
38,076
45,252
3,905

2,200
4,479
6,933
8,949
1,222
19,557
5,855
4,554
2,450
1,662
5,255
48,135
2,818

148,855

126,526

138,110

114,069

For the year, retirement benefit, net includes an amount of $35,942,000 relating to plan termination
benefit net of curtailment gain recognised upon the wind-up of pension plan. [Note 6(a)(v)]

(d)

Other expenses:
The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Impairment of related party
balance (see note 5)
Impairment of assets [see notes 3(a),
3(e) and 4]
Impairment of investment in
subsidiary (see note 5)

21.
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-

-

15,006

-

14,590

-

-

-

-

-

19,000

-

14,590

-

34,006

-

Taxation
(a)
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The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

Taxation is based on net profit for the year adjusted for taxation purposes and represents
income tax charged at 25%.

Current tax expense:
Income tax
Employment tax credit
Deferred taxation:
Originating and reversal of other
timing differences, net

The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

37,306
( 8,977)

32,084
( 9,137)

37,305
( 8,977)

31,961
( 9,137)

28,329

22,947

28,328

22,824

( 9,505)

( 5,876)

(16,104)

( 4,237)

18,824

17,071

12,224

18,587

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
21.

Taxation (cont’d)
(b)

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

Profit before tax

The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

87,510

85,971

48,248

116,092

21,492

12,062

29,023

( 9,137)

( 8,977)

(

9,137)

4,716

9,139

(

1,299)

Computed “expected”
tax expense @ 25%
21,877
Difference between profits for financial
statements and tax reporting purposes on:
Employment tax credit
( 8,977)
Disallowed expenses and capital
adjustments, net
5,924
Adjustments in respect of prior year
Actual expense
(c)

-

-

-

-

18,824

17,071

12,224

18,587

As at September 30, 2017, subject to the agreement of The Commissioner, Tax
Administration Jamaica, tax losses available for offset against future taxable profits for
the group was $123,777,448 (2016: $161,584,140) and for the company Nil (2016: Nil).
As at January 1, 2014, tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely; however, the
amount that can be utilized in any one year is restricted to 50% of the current year’s
taxable profits.
Deferred tax asset of $4,429,418 (2016: $5,396,000) for the group has not been
recognised in respect of tax losses in a subsidiary amounting to $15,604,950.

Transactions with related parties
The Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000

(i)

Directors emoluments:
Fees
Management remuneration

(ii)

For directors/executive officers who receive salaries, the company contracts to a post
employment defined benefit plan on their behalf.

8,949
-

8,949
-

8,949
-

8,949
-

Key management personnel compensation is as follows:
The Group and the Company
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

17,437
-

24,930
48,842
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The Group
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
23.

Earnings per ordinary stock unit
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to members by the
number of stock units in issue during the year.
2017
Net profit attributable to shareholders ($’000)
Number of stock units in issue
Basic earnings per stock unit ($)

24.

69,631

2016
74,837

103,883,300

103,883,300

0.67

0.72

Financial instruments
(a)

Financial risk management:
The company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
•
•
•
•

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk
Operational risk

The Board of Directors, together with senior management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management framework.
The group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the group to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and group’s activities.
(i)

Credit risk:
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Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. Credit risk arises
principally from the receivables arising from credit given to customers and deposits
and investments with financial institutions. The maximum credit exposure is
represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets in the statement of
financial position.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with substantial counter-parties deemed to
have low risk of default.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d):
(i)

Credit risk (cont’d):
Trade receivables
The group generally does not require collateral in respect of non-cash financial
assets. The group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristic of each customer. Management has a credit policy in place to
minimise exposure to credit risk. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit. Management establishes an allowance for impairment that
represents its estimate of losses in respect of trade and other receivables.
Management’s policy is to provide for balances based on past default experience,
current economic conditions and expected recovery.
At reporting date, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset.
The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date was:
The Group
2017
Gross
Impairment
Gross
$'000
$'000
$'000
Past due 0-30 days
Past due 31-60 days
More than 60 days

118,173
33,137
7,154

(4,597)

116,543
10,120
5,081

(4,946)

158,464

(4,597)

131,744

(4,946)

Gross
$'000
Past due 0-30 days
Past due 31-60 days
More than 60 days

2016
Impairment
$'000

37,274
47,032
617
84,923

The Company
2017
2016
Impairment
Gross
Impairment
$'000
$'000
$'000

( 4)

112,700
9,042
-

(

( 4)

121,742

(

-

4)
4)

Based on past experience, the group and the company believes that trade receivables
not provided for, relates to customers that have a good track record with the
company, as such no additional provision is considered necessary.
There is no change from the prior year in the nature of the company’s exposure to
credit risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

81

(a)
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
24.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
(a)

Financial risk management (cont’d):
(ii)

Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liability when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the company and or its subsidiaries reputation.
Management aims at maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed facilities. The
management of the group maintains an adequate amount of its financial assets in
liquid form to meet contractual obligations and other recurring payments.
The contractual outflows as at September 2017 and 2016 for accounts payable are
represented by their carrying amounts in the statement of financial position, and
require settlements within 12 months of the reporting date.
There is no change from the prior year in the nature of the company’s exposure to
liquidity risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

(iii) Market risk:
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange
rates, and interest rates will affect the group’s income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the
return.
•

Interest rate risk:
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.
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The group materially contracts financial liabilities at fixed interest rates for
the duration of the term. At September 30, 2017 and 2016, there were no
financial liabilities subject to variable interest rate risk.
Interest-bearing financial assets mainly comprise monetary instruments, bank
deposits and short-term investments, which have been contracted at fixed
interest rates for the duration of their terms.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial risk management (cont’d):
(iii) Market risk (cont’d):
•

Interest rate risk (cont’d):
At the reporting date the interest profile of the group’s interest bearing
financial instruments was:

Variable rate:
Assets

The Group and the company
Carrying amount
2017
2016
$’000
$’000
325,682

183,948

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The group does not hold any fixed rate financial assets that are subject to
material changes in fair value through profit or loss. Therefore a change in
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or equity.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
An increase in interest rate of change of 1% (2016: 1%) at the reporting date
would have increased profit or loss by $3,256,828 (2016: $1,839,411), while a
1% (2016: 1%) decline in interest rate at reporting date would have
decreased profit by $3,256,828 (2016: $1,839,411).
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency
rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.
•

Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
The group is exposed to significant foreign currency risk, primarily on
purchases that are denominated in a currency other than the Jamaica dollar.
Such exposures comprise the monetary assets and liabilities of the group that
are not denominated in that currency. The main foreign currency risks of the
group are denominated in United States dollars (US$), which is the principal
intervening currency for the group.
The group jointly manages foreign exchange exposure by maintaining
adequate liquid resources in appropriate currencies and by managing the
timing of payments on foreign currency liabilities.
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24.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
24.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
(a)

Financial risk management (cont’d):
(iii) Market risk (cont’d):
•

Foreign currency risk:
The table below shows the group’s main foreign currency exposure at the
reporting date.
The Group and the Company
Net foreign currency
monetary assets
2017
2016
J$
US$

US$
Cash and cash
equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Net exposure

J$

655,000
1,140,207
608,041
( 32,114)

84,160,295
146,480,929
78,126,643
( 4,126,355)

533,912
732,303
383,343
( 228,046)

68,121,864
93,434,508
48,910,777
( 29,096,334)

2,371,134

304,641,512

1,421,512

181,370,815

Exchange rates for the US dollar, in terms of Jamaica dollars, were as follows:
September 30, 2016
September 30, 2017

127.59
128.49

Sensitivity analysis
A 2% (2016: 1%) strengthening of the Jamaican dollar against the US$ would
have decreased profit for the year by $6,050,660 (2016: $1,813,708).
A 6% (2016: 6%) weakening of the Jamaica dollar against the US$ would
have increased profits for the year by $18,151,980 (2016: $10,882,255).
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.
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There is no change from the prior year in the nature of the company’s
exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages and measures the
risk.

SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
24.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
(a)

Financial risk management (cont’d):
(iv)

Operational risk:
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of
causes associated with the group’s processes, personnel, technology and
infrastructure, and from external factors, other than financial risks, such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of
corporate behaviour.
The group’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance
of financial losses and damage to its reputation with overall cost effectiveness and
to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.
The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to
address operational risk is assigned to senior management.

(b)

Capital management:
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain customer, creditor and
other stakeholder confidence, and to sustain future development of the business. The
Board of Directors monitor the return on capital, which is defined as total shareholders’
equity and the level of dividends to shareholders. The company and its’ subsidiaries are
not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

(c)

Fair value disclosure:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between markets participants at the measurement date. The fair
values of amounts disclosed as cash and cash equivalents, investment, accounts
receivable, due to subsidiary/due from subsidiary and accounts payable approximate to
their carrying value due to their short-term nature.
The group had no other financial instruments which were carried at fair value.

In November 2017, a resolution has been passed for the company to discontinue, on or before
December 31, 2017, all medical benefits to its retired employees and existing employees upon
their retirement who are members of Salada Foods Jamaica Limited Superannuation Fund.
When effective, this will result in derecognition of post-retirement medical benefit obligation
and recognition of a curtailment gain of approximately $33,000,000.
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Subsequent event
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SALADA FOODS JAMAICA LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Year ended September 30, 2017
2.

Statement of compliance, basis of preparation and significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(w)

Related parties:
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its
financial statements (referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting
entity”).
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if
that person:
(i)

has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a
parent of the reporting entity.
(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
(i)

The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the
reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related
to the reporting entity.
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(vi) The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).
(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between
related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

